PEARPOINT[®]

FlexiSight[™] Manager

Import, store and manage digital inspection data

Operation Manual

90/FSM-OPMAN-ENG/03

Preface

Before you begin

Please read this operation manual before attempting to use FlexiSight Manager. Note that this manual and all its contents are subject to change. Radiodetection products are under continuous development.

This manual is intended for FlexiSight Manager versions from 1.2.0.0.

Terms and legal statements

End User License Agreement – FlexiSight Manager software © 2014 Radiodetection Ltd. All Rights reserved. This software may not, in whole or in any part, be copied, reproduced, transmitted, translated (into any language, natural or computer), stored in a retrieval system, reduced to any electronic medium or machine readable format, or by any other form or means without prior consent, in writing, from Radiodetection Ltd.

IMPORTANT: Do not continue until you have read (the this End User License Agreement "Agreement"). By accepting the license agreements (or authorizing any other person to do so), you accept the End User License Agreement and are bound by its terms. If you are not sure that you are authorized by your employer to accept this Agreement, give this document to a principal in your company before proceeding. This Agreement is a legally binding document setting forth the manner by which you may use the FlexiSight Manager software.

Carefully read the terms and conditions of this Agreement before using this software. Use of the software indicates your acceptance of the following terms and conditions:

1. License. Radiodetection Ltd grants you a personal, non-transferable, non-exclusive, Ltd license to use this software on a single computer at a time. The "software" is defined as the software contained in this package and any

subsequent versions or upgrades received as a result of downloading this package. The software may only be used or copied only in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. You may make one copy of the software in machine-readable form for backup purposes only.

2. Ownership. The software shall remain the property of Radiodetection Ltd including the media on which the software is contained. Radiodetection Ltd retains ownership of the proprietary information contained within the software as well as all copies of the software made by you and the user manuals and other supporting materials.

3. Trademarks. FlexiSight Manager, P340. GatorCam, P350, flexitrax, flexiprobe, RD7000, Radiodetection, Pearpoint are trademarks of Radiodetection Ltd. Radiodetection is a subsidiary of SPX Corporation. SPX, the green ">" and "X" are trademarks of SPX Corporation Inc. You agree to reproduce the trademark and copyright notices on any copies you make of the software. Microsoft Word, Microsoft Office, Windows XP, Windows Vista, Windows Explorer, Windows 7 and 8 are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.

4. Use. The "user" is defined as the original downloader and any user of the software. The software may be used on a single computer at a time. You may not, without Radiodetection Ltd written permission:

(a) distribute, sublicense or sell any portion of the software;

(b) modify or prepare derivative works of the software;

(c) use the software in a computer-based services business;

(d) distribute the software product electronically by any means;

(e) use the software product in multiple computer or multiple user arrangements;

(f) reverse engineer or decompile the software;

(g) sell or transfer the software to any third party;

(h) modify or translate the software or accompanying documentation;

5. Taxes. You will pay all taxes, including use and property taxes, due to your use of the software.

6. Warranty. Radiodetection Ltd releases this software without any warranty, guarantee or support.

The software is furnished as is and without warranty as to the performance or results you may be able to obtain by using the software. The entire risk as to the results and performance of the software is assumed by you.

RADIODETECTION EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

7. Limitation of Liability. In no event shall Radiodetection Ltd be liable for direct, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages, or damage to any equipment, even if Radiodetection Ltd has knowledge of the potential for such loss or damage. In no event shall Radiodetection Ltd be liable for any loss of data.

8. Assignment. You may transfer or assign this Agreement to a successor of your business which uses the software. However, you must transfer all copies of the software to the successor and the successor must promptly notify Radiodetection Ltd that it will comply with the terms of this Agreement.

9. Termination. This Agreement is effective until terminated. You may terminate it at any time by destroying the software. It will also be terminated immediately if you fail to comply with any term of this Agreement. Upon termination, you agree to destroy the software.

10. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by the laws of England and Wales, except its conflict of laws rules.

Due to a policy of continued development, we reserve the right to alter or amend any published specification without notice. This document may not be copied, reproduced, transmitted, modified or used, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Radiodetection Ltd.

Disclaimers

Any third-party products (including hardware, software and services) mentioned in this manual are for instructional purposes only and are not an endorsement by Radiodetection Ltd or SPX Corporation.

Radiodetection Ltd does not accept any liability for loss of data or damage to equipment when using any third-party products.

For the avoidance of doubt, while FlexiSight Manager is the PC companion for P350 flexitrax, flexiprobe P330+, P340, GatorCam3+ and GatorCam4 systems, this manual is not intended to nor does it in any way address the safe or appropriate ownership, use, operation or maintenance of those systems and customers should not use such systems without reviewing and consulting the appropriate Operations Manual for such systems.

Training

Radiodetection provides training services for most products. Our qualified instructors will train equipment operators or other personnel at the customers preferred location or at Radiodetection facilities.

For more information go to www.radiodetection.com or contact your local authorized representative.

Contents

Section	n 1 - Introduction	1
1.1	About this manual	1
1.2	Overview	2
1.3	Compatible Systems	2
Section	n 2 - Installation	3
2.1	Requirements	3
2.2	Installation guide	3
2.3	Running FSM for the first time	5
2.4	About	5
2.5	Upgrade to the Pipe Inclination Analysis Module	6
2.5.	5.1 FlexiSight User Manager	6
Section	n 3 - Jobs	9
3.1	What is a JOB?	9
3.2	The Job Browser Window	9
3.3	Importing Jobs and survey files	11
3.3.	3.1 Jobs folder structure	11
3.3.	B.2 Backing up the Jobs folder	12
3.3.	3.3 Importing Jobs (new systems)	12
3.3.4	3.4 Importing legacy Jobs	17
3.4	Reviewing your Jobs	23
Section	n 4 - Surveys	27
4.1	Reviewing a survey	27
4.2	Review survey information	28
4.3	Videos and pictures	29
4.4	Reviewing a video	
4.5	Observations	32
4.5.	5.1 Legacy Observations	32
4.5.	5.2 Observations Browser	32
4.5.	5.3 Create or edit an observation	34
4.6	Create and Edit Pipe Inclination Charts	
4.7	Microsoft Word Survey Reports	
4.7.	7.1 Converting Word files to PDF	43
Section	n 5 - Editing a picture	
5.1	Adding shapes to pictures	45
5.2	Adding text to your picture	46
Section	n 6 - Editing a Video	48
6.1	Video Editor Screen	
6.2	Video Player	49

6.3	Mer	ging video files	51
6.4	Cut	ting a video	51
Section	7 -	FlexiSight + Classic Window	54
7.1	Cre	ating a Report	54
Section	8 -	Setup Options	56
8.1	Setu	up Menu Options	56
8.2	Loc	al settings tab	56
8.2.	.1	FlexiSight User Manager	57
8.2.	.2	Jobs folder location	57
8.2.	.3	Language Selection	59
8.2.	.4	Edit Company Information.	59
8.2.	.5	Report Layout Options	60
8.3	Sys	tem SettingsTab	61
8.3.	.1	Condition Codes and Survey Parameters Set	61
8.3.	.2	Job Template editor	65
8.4	Con	troller Tab	68
8.4.	.1	Export to Controller	70
Section	9 -	Customizing the Word template	72
9.1	Add	ling your company details and logo	72
9.2	Edit	ing the Word templates	72
Section	10 -	Removing FlexiSight Manager	74

Section 1 - Introduction

1.1 About this manual

This manual provides comprehensive operating instructions for the use of FlexiSight Manager, also referred to as FSM in the manual. Before attempting to use FlexiSight Manager, it is important that you read this manual noting licensing terms, notes, cautions and procedures in the Preface and throughout the rest of this manual.

Once you have read this manual, we recommended that you retain it for reference purposes. A printed version of this manual is available on request. Please contact your local Pearpoint representative for more information. The rest of the manual has the following structure:-

Section 2: Guidelines for quick setup of FlexiSight Manager, including activating the paid additional features.

Section 3: Introduces the concept of Jobs, the Jobs browser, importing and backup of files.

Section 4: Describes how to use FSM to review and edit Survey data, optional pipe inclination analysis module and produce reports.

Section 5: Describes how to Edit and annotate pictures.

Section 6: Describes how to use the FSM video editor, including how to cut or merge videos, to show smaller clips of survey video and reduced file size.

Section 7: Describes the use of the FlexiSight+ Classic Window to allow use of existing surveys from legacy systems.

Section 8: A guide to setup and customization of FSM. Including languages, Condition Codes, Survey Parameters and other advances features.

Section 9: A guide to customizing the Word Template (advanced users).

Section 10: How to remove FlexiSight Manager from your system.

1.2 Overview

FlexiSight Manager is the PC companion for P350 flexitrax, flexiprobe P330+, P340, GatorCam3+ and GatorCam4 systems.

NOTE: Survey data (video recordings, pictures or observations) created using third parties' software or hardware is not supported by FSM.

Use FSM to import, store and review all your survey recordings and observations from your controller, create new observations and create detailed reports.

P350 (software V4.00 or later), P340 and GatorCam4 users can also use FSM to customize their controller by modifying job templates, Condition Codes and Survey Parameters and by being able to create and edit text pages.

1.3 Compatible Systems

Fully compatible systems are currently defined as the P340, GatorCam4 and P350 (software 4.00 or higher).

Legacy systems are currently defined as the P330+, GatorCam3+ and P350 (software prior to 4.00) and can be used with the Flexisight+ Classic window. They can also be converted to the modern FSM style surveys, please note that once imported to the modern FSM they can no longer be used on legacy systems.

Section 2 - Installation

2.1 Requirements

FlexiSight Manager is compatible with Microsoft® Windows XP, Windows Vista and Windows 7 and 8. It is not compatible with Android system or iPads. It will also require a licensed copy of Microsoft Word installed as a program (web enabled Office systems, such as Office 365 will not work).

To ensure the program will run smoothly on your computer ensure you have at least 2GB of RAM and several gigabytes worth of free storage space.

NOTE: Video recordings will require a large amount of free storage capacity: 55 minutes of video recordings will require around 1G of free memory. Radiodetection recommends backing-up your completed JOBs onto a network, external drive or other backup device.

Administrator installation rights may be required to install software.

2.2 Installation guide

NOTE: The basic FlexiSight Manager package is licensed free of charge and it requires the installations of a number of libraries and programs which are provided under the **GNU Lesser General Public License** and **GNU General Public License** agreements.

To install FlexiSight Manager onto your PC follow these steps:

- 1. Insert the FlexiSight Manager CD
- 2. Using Windows Explorer, navigate to the FlexiSight Manager folder and double click the setup.exe file to start the installation process.



- 3. Once the Install Wizard (Figure 2.1) appears click on the **Next** button.
- 4. You will then be presented with 5 License Agreement windows (see Figure 2.2).
 - General License
 - FS Manager
 - MP4Box:
 - DirectShowLib play
 - LAV Filter



Figure 2.2 License Agreements

You will have to read and accept each individual license agreement. Press **Next** to proceed with the installation.

When asked press Next to accept the default folder locations for FlexiSight Manager.

- 5. Once the installation of FlexiSight Manager is complete press Finish (see Figure 2.3).
- 6. The ffdshow installation program will then run. No interaction is required with this process.
- 7. At the end of the Installation process you may be requested to re-start your computer.



Figure 2.3 Installation Complete

2.3 Running FSM for the first time

When you run FSM for the first time you will have to setup your software:

1. You can choose to install FSM in one of the languages supported. Choose your preferred language by pressing on a country flag (see Figure 2.5).

You can also change your language at any time from the Setup screen (see Section 6.1.1).

 Enter your company details (see Figure 2.6).The information provided will be used to compile reports.



Figure 2.5 FlexiSight Manager Language Setup Screen

You can also enter or modify the company details at any time from the Setup screen (see Section 6.1.2.), these details will be included in the FSM word survey.

Logo	logo jpg 🔹 🔹
Company	Radiodetection Ltd
Crew	
Address	Western Drive
Town	Bristol
State/County	
ZIP/Postcode	BS14 0AF
Telephone	1234567
Fax	777321
Email	someone@somplace.com
	1.

Figure 2.6 Company Information Screen

Selecting a Logo will present your company logo at the front of the Word Report, this can lead to professional looking reports created within minutes.

2.4 About

FlexiSight Manager is divided into 3 tabbed windows (see Figure 2.7).

- Job Browser: Lets you import and manage jobs (see section 3).
- Site / Surveys: Lets you review and edit your survey files and observations and create reports (see section 4).

FlexiSig	ght Ma	anager Tabbed V	Vindows	
Flexi ^g ight Ma	anaget			
Job Browser	Surveys	FlexiSight+ Classic		
C:\Users\aiac	carino\Do	cuments\Jobs\client		
			Jobs	
Import	Edit	Delete		
Client				

5



• FlexiSight+ Classic: Use this window if you are using FlexiSight Manager to open files generated with legacy systems.

2.5 Upgrade to the Pipe Inclination Analysis Module

The basic version of FlexiSight Manager will create a WRc or PACP compliant Word report (custom codes can also be added at any time). It allows photos, observations, industry codes and basic pipe graphics to be reported.

The Pipe Inclination Analysis Module is made available in the latest release as an optional upgrade, FSM can now use crawler inclination data to map the slope of surveyed areas. This can be used to review the suitability of slopes for adequate flow and functions.

FSM has an online update tool called FSM User Manager to enable this paid feature. License codes are purchased by contacting a Pearpoint sales representative, who can remotely allocate license credits to enable this feature.

This will require an internet connection and a compatible PC.

2.5.1 FlexiSight User Manager

FlexiSight User Manager authorizes upgrades to the paid functionality. Open it from within FlexiSight Manager via the Setup menu, by clicking 'Run User Manager'.

	Setup Help 🗸
Setup Options	
Local System Controller These settings apply only to FlexiSight Manager.	
FlexiSight User Manager	Run User Manager

Figure 2.7a – Running the User Manager

	sm FSM	<u> </u>
	Sign In 📖	📝 Edit 😳 Language 🗸 🗰
1	Welcome	
	Username (Email Address)
	Password	Login
	Company	Forgotten Password ? contact rd_support@spx.com
	Address	Existing Users Username rd_support@spx.com
		Password
	Telephone Mobile	Login
	Mobile	New Users Sign Up Here
	Feature	

Figure 2.7b User Manager - Login / Account Registration screen

Existing customers should enter their Username and password and click 'Login'.

New users should click 'Sign Up Here' and fill in the following details followed by clicking the 'Save' button:

Account Details	
* denotes compulsory fields	
*Username (email address)	
*Password	
*Confirm Password	
*Real Name	
*Company	
*Address	
*Post Code/Zip Code	
*County/State	
*Country/Region	
Telephone	
Mobile	
Privacy Statement (PDF)	Save Quit

2.7c User Manager - Account Details Registration

File F	SM				
8	Sign Out (Led J	ones)	Edit	😋 Language 👻 🍓	
	Welcome		Led Jones		
	Username (Ema	il Address)	led.jones@spx.com		
	Password		*******		
	Company		Pearpoint		
-	Address		14 Western Drive Bristol Bristol BS14 0AF		Customer details
·	Telephone		01179886220		
	Mobile		07753862396		
Fe	ature	Enabled	Credits	Status	ī.
PIT	TCH PROFILE	No	0	No Feature Credits	Enable status
	Pitch profile machine sta			of license egistered to	

Figure 2.7d User Manager - Credit Status Menu

Once an account is set up, make a note of the e-mail address linked to the account, then contact a Pearpoint sales representative to discuss payment options. These will be linked to the user e-mail account and PC. After confirmation from Pearpoint the account has been updated, it will be necessary to log out and back in again. The option will become available to enable the advanced features.

In the top right corner, the edit button allows a quick change of customer details, while the language selection button displays the available languages for the program.

Click 'Sign Out' to log out of the account (if required, for example to change users).

The P350 controller and crawlers log data automatically and do not require any upgrades, they may however require the latest software 'matched set' to be installed, this is available free of charge on the Pearpoint website.

NOTE: User passwords are encrypted with modern security technology and passwords are not recoverable by any of our staff. Our staff have the option of resetting lost passwords if necessary, by request to our technical support team.

Section 3 - Jobs

This section introduces the concept of FlexiSight Manager's Jobs, how these are imported or created from your system's survey data and how to browse and edit them.

3.1 What is a JOB?

Inspection systems are mostly used to survey pipelines. During a pipe survey you can use any compatible controller to record videos, take pictures and / or make observations to document your inspection.

In most cases a Survey is conducted on behalf of a Client, at a specific Site on a specific section of a specific pipe.

FSM defines a **Job** as a **Survey**, or inspection of a specific section of a pipe, conducted at a **Site** on behalf of a **Client**.

A single client may have more than one site, and for each site there may be multiple surveys.

3.2 The Job Browser Window

FSM has a Job browser window (Figure 3.1) to allow you to manage all of your jobs. This window is divided into 2 main areas:

Jobs pane

Use this pane to import, browse edit and delete your Jobs. FSM imports and stores your survey data files into your PCs default job folder.

Jobs are identified by the client names and sorted in alphabetical order. Each client may have multiple sites and multiple surveys.

You can use the main Jobs window to:

- 1. Select a client to display all the associated sites.
- 2. Select a site to display all the associated surveys.

Use the Filter pane to quickly identify the surveys you are looking for. Double click any site or survey to enter the Survey's window.

Reports pane

Use this pane to edit, rename, delete and browse all the word reports associated with the selected site in the Jobs pane.

				Selected job	folder location	Reports	Commands
	FlexiSight Manager :			/			
ſ	Job Browser Surveys	FlexiSight+Classic				Setup	Help -
	C:\Users\aiaccarino\Do	cuments\Jobs\Mark Smiths Ltd\Park	End RD				
mands			Jobs			Reports	
nano	i Import Edit					it Rename Dele	
pane	Apt 42 Carlisle D Bristol County To				A Park E	End RD.Doc	
	⊕ Devon Dairy Alia ⊕ dominic harrison						
	🗄 Dynamic Gas Pi	pelines Inc.			E		R
	iter Kentish Farm Pro	oducts Unit 44) p
	- Mark Smiths Ltd						
	Park End R	D H2 24 January 2012 12:17					
	MH1-M	H3 05 January 2009 12:17					
	Moskva Heater						
	Portlaoise (J P H				*		
	Survey Filter						
	All	Apply Filter and Expand	Sub Filter				
	C Last Week	rippy morana opena					
	C Last Month		Client				
Pane	🔘 Last Year	Apply Filter	Crew		*		
	Select Dates						
	From To	21 March 2012					
	10	21 March 2012					
							SPX

Figure 3.1 Job Browser window

3.3 Importing Jobs and survey files

Survey data files (video recordings, pictures, report files and observation) created using your inspection system are stored on the system memory storage device. FSM will access your storage device and import the data files in your PC.

3.3.1 Jobs folder structure

FSM stores all your Jobs data (survey files) in the default Jobs folder. For more information about the default location of the Jobs folder and how to modify it refer to paragraph 6.1.1.

The Jobs folder is organized by client, site then survey (see Figure 3.2).

All files belonging to an individual survey are imported and stored in a unique **Survey** folder. Each survey folder is contained within a **Site** folder, which is contained in a **Client** folder.

- The top folder is the **Client** folder; named after the client's name, and contains your client data in a XML system file.
- The **Site** folder; is named after the site's address, and contains the client's site data in a XML system file.
- The **Survey** folder is where all your survey files are stored. This is named after your survey start and finish references plus a date and time stamp:

start reference_finish reference_yymmdd_hhmm

MH1_MH2_110129_1225 for example, is a survey between MH1 and MH2 conducted on 29 January 2011 at 12:25

Each **Client** may contain multiple **Sites**. Each **Site** may contain multiple **Surveys**.



Figure 3.2 JOBS folders structure

CAUTION: The Jobs folder hierarchical structure and the integrity and location of the XML are critical to the operation of FSM. **Do not** modify, rename or delete XML files. **Do not** rename, move or delete any files/folders, <u>unless</u> you completely understand the consequences of your actions.

3.3.2 Backing up the Jobs folder

It is good practice to regularly backup the content of the Jobs folder, as well as the content of the FSM settings folder (*My Documents \FlexiSight Manager*), to protect against hardware failure or to recover data accidentally deleted or modified.

You may also want to free up some hard drive space by moving some old jobs data to a different location.

When backing up or moving your jobs data take care to include the entire content of your Client folders (Figure 3.3) to ensure preserving the integrity of FSM data. Ensure to include all files!



Figure 3.3 Client folder structure

3.3.3 Importing Jobs (new systems)

FSM automatically import and stores surveys created with a flexiprobe P340 or Gatorcam4 system by using the job details entered at the start of each survey.

In order to take advantage of this feature enter the client's name, site address, start and finish chamber or position when you start a new survey. Refer to the flexiprobe P340 or GatorCam4 Operation manual for more information.

If no details are entered, FSM will copy the survey in a default folder, from where you will be able to file it manually at the end of the import procedure.

To import your P350, P340 or Gatorcam job files follow these steps:

- 1. Connect your Memory device to your PC.
- 2. Press the Import button on the Jobs pane (see Figure 3.1).
- The Browse For Folder screen (Figure 3.4) will appear. Navigate to your removable storage device and select the JOBS folder, where your surveys data are located.

NOTE: Selecting the **JOBS** folder will import all jobs that are contained under **JOBS**. If you only wish to import one client's jobs, select the appropriate folder for that client.

4. Press **OK** to continue or **Cancel**. The Import Jobs screen will

	he Source Folder that you want to imp	
_	JOBS	
	client	
	🖻 퉬 Derek Smith	E
	🖻 📙 Derekt	
	🖻 🏭 Led J	
	Mark Smiths Ltd	
D	Stephane's Learner	
Þ	Removable Disk (G:)	-
1		۲

Figure 3.4 Browse for Folder screen

appear for the Import of the survey data (see Figure 3.5).

NOTE: A message may appear to warn you that you have less than 1Gb of memory storage available on your PC. .Always ensure to have at least 1Gb of free memory storage on your PC.

This screen summarizes all the actions taken.

- Press Cancel at any time to interrupt the import process.
- Press **Start** to re-initiate an interrupted Import.
- Press **Finish** to move to the next screen

	ed C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents	s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_110902_130	19		
isting Identical Survey not replac	d C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents	s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_110913_143	39		
isting Identical Survey not replac	d C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents	s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_110914_150)1		
isting Identical Survey not replac	d C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents	s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_110914_151	12		-
isting Identical Survey not replac	d C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents	s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_110915_120	14		
		s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_110921_102			
isting Identical Survey not replac	d C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents	s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_110826_113	39		
isting Identical Survey not replac	d C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents	s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_110921_143	34		
isting Identical Survey not replac	d C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents	s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_110926_152	24		
isting Identical Survey not replac	d C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents	s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_110926_152	25		
isting Identical Survey not replac	d C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents	s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_110926_154	42		
		s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_111219_141			:
		s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_111221_154			
		s\Jobs\client\site\D_F_111223_111			
		s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_120103_173			
		s\Jobs\client\site\S_F_120103_174			
		s\Jobs\Derek Smith\efsnbit\S_F_11	0902_1203		
Ided C:\Users\aiaccarino\Docur	ents\Jobs\John Owsley\newbury\r	mh1_mh2_110721_1158			
port Complete					
			Stat	Cancel	Finish



NOTE: The import process may take a considerable amount of time depending on the size of the survey files you are importing.

- 5. At the end of the import process you will be asked if you want to delete the job files from your removable storage device (see Figure 3.6).
 - Select the jobs, identified by the client names, you wish to delete, and then press the **Delete** button to delete them from your source JOBS folder.
 - 5. Press **Cancel** to cancel the remove operation.

Select All			
 Mark Smiths Ltd Led J Derekt 			
 client Derek Smith 			
elect the Jobs to delete from th	e Source Folde	r	

Figure 3.6 Remove screen

Caution: Deleting the JOBS folder from your memory storage is an action which cannot be undone.

Filing surveys not containing or with incomplete Job details

By default flexiprobe P340 and GatorCam4 systems use **client** and **site** as label names if no information is entered. FSM will import these surveys (or jobs) in a default client folder. This folder is highlighted in red (see Figure 3.7).

Jobs	
Import Edit Delete	
⊕- 2 Broadquay Building - Bristol	
391 b Park Avenue Bristol	ſ
Apt 42 Carlisle Drive	
Bristol County Tourist Centre	
⇔- client	
- Cromwell Rd	
S-F 17 January 2012 16:00	
S-F 23 January 2012 16:07	
i⊟-site	
D-F 23 December 2011 11:19	
S-F 03 January 2012 17:39	
S-F 13 September 2011 14:39	
S-F 14 September 2011 15:12	
S-F 15 September 2011 12:04 S-F 19 December 2011 14:11	
S-F 21 September 2011 14:34	
-S-F 26 August 2011 11:39	
Derek Smith	
- Devon Dairy Alliance	
- dominic harrison	
- Dynamic Gas Pipelines Inc.	
John Owsley	
Kentish Farm Products Unit 44	
Moskva Heater Corp	
Northern Jet Cleaners	
Portlaoise (J P Hansan)	
Scotland Gae Pathershin	

Figure 3.7 Default client folder

You can file your jobs to an existing client and site job folder structure:

Filing an individual survey:

- 1. Select the survey you wish to move (see Figure 3.8).
- 2. Select Copy, (or right click on your mouse) and the Default Copy screen will appear (see Figure 3.9).

nport Edit Delete Copy		E-client
 site D-F 23 December 2011 11:19 S-F 02 September 2011 13:09 S-F 03 January 2012 17:07 S-F 03 January 2012 17:09 S-F 03 January 2012 17:39 		Destination Select the destination Job folder for the copy Client Mark Smiths Ltd
	Edit	Site
S-F 07 February 2012 11:26	Delete	Park End RD New Park End RD
S-F 13 September 2011 14:39 S-F 14 September 2011 15:01	Сору	Copy Cancel
S-F 13 September 2011 14:39 S-F 14 September 2011 15:01 S-F 14 September 2011 15:12	Сору	

Figure 3.9 Copy a default survey to a client / site

- 3. Select an existing Client or create a new one.
- 4. Select an existing Site or create a new one.
- 5. Press Copy to add the chosen survey to the selected client and site.
- 6. The Copy Jobs windows will appear (Figure 3.10) and when the copy is completed, it will show you the location of the new survey folder. Press **Finish** to continue.

Copy Jobs	
Checking Disk Space Disk Check OK Added C.\Users\aiaccarino\Documents\Jobs\Bristol County Tourist Centre\29 Fullwood Lane\D_F_111223_1119	*
Complete	
	~
🎾 💓	
	Finish



7. FSM will offer you the option to delete the originating survey folder (see Figure 3.11). This is recommended to avoid duplicating files in your JOBS folder. Press Yes to delete the survey folder or No to maintain a copy of it.



Delete Sou	urce Survey	3
?	Your Survey data files have been copied. Do you want to delete the originating Survey data?	
	client site S-F 03 January 2012 17:43	
	Yes <u>N</u> o	
Figure	e 3.11 Delete Source Survey	

Figure 3.11 Delete Source Survey

Filing all surveys associated to a site:

- 1. Select the site you wish to associate to a client (see Figure 3.12).
- 2. Select Copy or the right button on your mouse and the Default Copy screen will appear (see Figure 3.13).
- 3. Select an existing Client or create a new one.
- 4. Press Copy to add the chosen site and its surveys to the selected client.

	Jobs	Filing an undefined/default Job Source Folder client
Import Edit Delete Copy •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	Edit Delete Copy	Cromwell Rd Destination Select the destination Job folder for the copy Client 2 Broadquay Building - Bristol 391 b Park Avenue Bristol 391 b Park Avenue Bristol Apt 42 Carlise Drive Bristol Courty Tourts Centre Derek Smith Derek Th De

Figure 3.12 Selecting a site to copy

Figure 3.13 Selecting a client

5. The Copy Jobs windows will appear and when the copy is completed, it will show you the location of the new survey folders (see Figure 3.14). Press **Finish** to continue.

Copy Jobs	
Checking Disk Space Disk Check OK	*
Added C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents\Jobs\Moskva Heater Corp\Cromwell Rd\S_F_120123_1600 Added C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents\Jobs\Moskva Heater Corp\Cromwell Rd\S_F_120123_1607	
Complete	
	*
ee ee	
	Finish

Figure 3.14 Copy Jobs summary screen

 FSM will offer you the option to delete the originating site folder. This is recommended to avoid duplicating files in your JOBS folder. Press Yes to delete the site folder or No to maintain a copy of it.

AUTION: This Operation cannot be undone.

3.3.4 Importing legacy Jobs

P350 (software prior to V3.00), P330+ and GatorCam3+ survey files

By default flexitrax P350, flexiprobe P330+ or GatorCam3+ survey files are stored in folders, named after the day and month the files were created, with no identification of the client name, site address or survey details. Users have also the option to create survey reports where client, site and survey information and observations can be added. Refer to the relevant operation manual for more information.

To import your legacy survey files into FSM follow these steps:

- 1. Connect your Memory card.
- 2. Press the Import button on the Jobs pane (see Figure 3.1).
- 3. The **Browse for Folder** screen (Figure 3.15) will appear. Navigate to the **DVC** folder contained into your removable storage device and select the folder where your survey's data are located.

NOTE: Make sure to select the folder containing your survey files. FSM will fail to import your files if you select the DVC folder.

4. Press **OK** to continue to the Import Survey Files screen or **Cancel**.

Depending on the presence of a survey report, and the details entered into this, the next step will be different:



5. Use the files browser in the Import Survey Files screen to select the survey files you wish to import into FSM (see Figure 3.16). You can use **Select All** to select all files or you can manually select individual files.

	pr Folder	l	
Select t	ne Source Folder that you want to i	mport Jobs fro	m
4 1	Computer		
100 L	Local Disk (C:)		
1000	DVD RW Drive (D:)		
4	Removable Disk (E:)		_
4	DVC		
	🗼 07Dec		
	📕 16_Feb		
	📕 31Aug		
	🛚 🍌 meyer michel		
	🖻 🌽 test		+
•	m	+	
	ОК	Cancel	-
	OK	Cancer	



	Import Jobs - E:\DVC\07Dec	
Files brow <u>ser</u>	Select Al Image: Constraint of the select	Destination Select the destination for the copy Client Ste Stre Survey New New New
	2	Move Copy
		Ext

Figure 3.16 Import Survey Files screen – No survey report presents

6. Use the Client, Site and Survey dropdown boxes to select the client, site and survey where you want to import the selected file (see Figure 3.17). You can also press **New** to define new details

elect the destination for the copy	
Client	
2 Broadquay Building - Bristol	New
Site	
300 Good Film Way	New
Survey	
S partial-F 11 February 2011 09:38	New

7. Press **Move** or **Copy** to import the selected files into FSM (see Figure 3.18). The files will be imported into the relevant subfolder in the FSM Jobs folder.

Import Jobs	- E\\DVC\16_Feb		
1	Select All I GFeb001 MP4 I GFeb002 MP4 I GFeb003 MP4 I GFeb003 MP4 I GFeb004 MP4	Destination Select the destination for the copy Clent Derek Smith Site efsribit Survey S-F 02 September 2011 12:03	New New
2		Move	Copy Ext

Figure 3.18 Importing survey files – No survey report present

NOTE: The Move and Copy buttons are only available if steps 5 and 6 have been completed.

- 8. Repeat steps 5 to 7 to import survey files to different Jobs (client, sites and survey).
- 9. Press Exit to return to the Job browser.

Importing survey files contained in a folder containing reports

5. Use the reports browser in the Import Survey Files screen (Figure 3.19) to select the report associated to the survey files you wish to import into FSM. Press **Import** to progress and to obtain the client, site and survey information, press **Finish** to complete.

	Surveys	Report 1 Report2	import
eports browser			
les browser	2	Select All 07Dec005.JPG 07Dec006.JPG 07Dec007.MP4 07Dec009.JPG 07Dec011.JPG 07Dec011.JPG 07Dec011.JPG 07Dec011.JPG 07Dec011.JPG 07Dec011.JPG 07Dec011.JPG 07Dec011.JPG 07Dec015.MP4 07Dec015.JPG 07Dec017.JPG	
	3		Моче Сору
			Ext

6. FSM will ask you to confirm the date in which the survey took place (see Figure 3.20). This information will be used to create the survey folder. Press **OK** to continue.

Survey Da	te	13	-07-2011			
	13	July	2011		(
					14:19	-
Verify the survey date :	and ti	me and i	adjust accordi	ngiy		
		(ок			

The user may be asked to confirm the data format if the system cannot detect this automatically.

 FSM will create a new survey folder associated to a new or existing client and/or site. The import screen shows the location of the folder associated to the survey in the Jobs folder (see Figure 3.21). Press Finish to continue.

Import Jobs - E:\DVC\07Dec		
Checking Disk Space Disk Check OK Added C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents\Jobs\dominic harrison\bristl road bristol glos\120123_1301	*	Survey folder location
Import Complete		
	+	
Start Cancel Finish		
Figure 3.21 Import Screen		1

8. FSM will give you the option to delete the report you have just imported from the Memory Card (see Figure 3.22). Press Yes to delete the report or No to continue without deleting it.

A CAUTION: The delete operation cannot be undone.

Delete Surv	, cy		~~~~
?	E:\DVC\07	/Dec\Rep	ort2
-			
	<u>Y</u> es		No

Figure 3.22 Deleting the imported report

9. Use the files browser in the Import Survey Files screen to select the survey files you wish to import into FSM (see Figure 3.23). You can use **Select All** to select all files or you can manually select individual files.

	Report 1 Report2	
1		Import
	Select All	Destination
	07Dec005.JPG 07Dec006.JPG	Select the destination for the copy
	07Dec007.MP4	Client
	07Dec009.JPG	dominic harrison New
2	07Dec011.JPG 07Dec012.JPG	Ste
_	07Dec014.JPG 07Dec01.JPG	bristl road bristol glos New
	07Dec015.MP4 07Dec016.JPG	Survey
	07Dec017.JPG	MH1-MH2 23 January 2012 00:00 New
3		Mave Copy

Figure 3.23 Import Survey Files Screen – Selecting the files to copy or move

10. Review the Client, Site and Survey dropdo	wn
boxes to confirm the client, site and survey	
where you want to import the selected file	
(Figure 3.24). You can also press New to	
define new details.	

ent	
2 Broadquay Building - Bristol	New
ite	
300 Good Film Way	New
urvey	
S partial-F 11 February 2011 09:38	▼ New



11. Press **Move** or **Copy** (Figure 3.23) to import the selected files into FSM. The files will be imported into the relevant subfolder in the FSM Jobs folder.

NOTE: The Move and Copy buttons are only available if steps 10 and 11 have been completed.

- 12. Repeat steps 5 to 12 to import survey files to different Jobs (client, sites and survey).
- 13. Press Exit to return to the Job browser.

3.4 Reviewing your Jobs

Use the Jobs browser to review all the Jobs stored in your default Jobs folder location (see Figure 3.25).

The Jobs pane shows all clients, sorted in alphabetical order.

- 1. Click the name of the client you want to review. A list of all the sites belonging to the client will appear underneath.
- 2. Click on the name of the site you want to review. A list of the surveys belonging to the site will appear. Double click the site to enter the Surveys tab (or click the Surveys tab).

Any Word reports that have been created for this Site will be listed in the Reports pane and the "Surveys" Tab will show surveys at this Site (see Figure 3.26).

FlexiSight Manager :		
Job Browser Surveys FlexiSight+Classic		Setup Help -
C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents\Jobs\Bristol County Tourist (Centre\29 Fullwood Lane	
	Jobs	Reports
Import Edit Delete		Edit Rename Delete
2 Broadquay Building - Bristol 391 b Park Avenue Bristol Apt 42 Carlisle Drive Bristol County Tourist Centre 29 Fullwood Lane 300 Good Film Way Comvell Rd Client Derek Smith Derek Smith Derekt Devon Dairy Alliance dominic harmson Dynamic Gas Pipelines Inc. Kentish Farm Products Unit 44 Led J Mark Smiths Ltd	E	29 Fullwood Lane.doc
Survey Filter All Apply Filter and Expand	Sub Filter	
Last Week Last Month	Client -	
Last Year Apply Filter Select Dates	Crew T	
From 27 April 2012		
To 27 April 2012		
		SPX

Figure 3.25 Job browser

Editing a client/site

- 1. You can edit a client/site by selecting the desired record and pressing **Edit** on the toolbar or by pressing the right button on your mouse and by selecting Edit.
- 2. A screen will open which will allow you to modify the client/site records (see Figure 3.26).
- 3. Press Save to confirm your changes or Quit to cancel

Name	Bristol County Tourist Centre
Client reference	Danielson
Address	23 High Street
Town	Bristol
State/County	Avon
ZIP/Postcode	BS14 3TR
Telephone	01179123456
Email	bristol_toffice@bristol.gov

Figure 3.26 Modifying Client records

Deleting a client / site / survey

- 1. You can delete a client, site or survey by selecting the desired record and pressing **Delete** on the toolbar, or right-click on your mouse.
- 2. A warning screen will open up. Press Yes to delete your records or No to cancel

A CAUTION: Deleting a client will permanently delete all the sites and surveys associated with this client. Deleting a site will permanently delete the site and every survey associated with the site.

Default Clients and Sites

If client and site details have not been entered on the controller then, the client and site will default to predefined names (e.g. "client" and "site"). These jobs will be displayed in red text in the job browser pane.

A "**Copy**" button will appear on the toolbar if a "default job" is selected. See Section 3.3.3 for more information on how to file a default job.

Browsing existing reports

The Reports pane shows all the existing MS Word reports associated with the site selected in the Jobs pane (see Figure 3.25).

- Select a report and press Edit or double-click on the file to open the report in MS Word.
- Press Rename to change the name of the report.
- Press Delete to delete the report.

AUTION: Deleting a report will permanently remove it from your PC.

Opening the Selected Job Folder in Windows Explorer

You can access your client/site or survey folders in Windows Explorer by double clicking on the selected job folder location at the top of the Job browser window.

Filtering surveys

You can select and apply a number of filters to aid navigation through the surveys stored in your Jobs folder (see Figure 3.27).

Survey Filter 🔽				
Al		Apply Filter and Expand		Sub Filter
Last Week				
Last Month				Client 💌
Last Year		Apply Filter		Crew 🗸
Select Dates				
From	31	August 2011		
То	31	August 2011		



Check the Surveys Filters checkbox to enable the filtering.

NOTE: Clients with no surveys associated will not be displayed by the Job Browser when filtering.

Time filters:

- All: Select not to apply a time filter.
- Last Week: Select to filter by surveys conducted within the last week.
- Last Month: Select to filter by surveys conducted within the last month.
- Last Year: Select to filter by surveys conducted within the last year
- Select Dates: Select to filter the list by surveys performed between two specific dates.

Sub filters:

- Client: Select this to filter by clients. Use the drop down menu to select a specific client.
- Crew: Select this to filter by crews. Use the drop down menu to select a specific crew.

Applying the filters:

- 1. Press the **Apply Filter** button to apply your filter. The Job list will display all the jobs which match the filters criteria.
- 2. Press the **Apply Filter and Expand** button to apply your filter and expand all the jobs, which match the filters criteria, to show sites and surveys.

NOTE: When you start modifying the filters, the 2 "Apply filter" buttons change color to remind you to apply the filters.

Section 4 - Surveys

This section describes how you can use FSM to review and edit your surveys data and to produce detailed Inspection reports.

4.1 Reviewing a survey

Once you have selected a client and site using the Job browser you can switch to the Site - Surveys window (see Figure 4.1). From this window you will be able to review and edit all your video, photos and observations. You can also enter new observations, take new photos and create new reports.

	FlexiSight M	lanager : (C:\Users\a	iaccarir	o\Documents\Jobs\Mar	k Sm	hiths Ltd\Park End RD\MH1_MH2_120124_121	7\18Jan002.MP4_0	14.JPG			X	
	Job Browser	Mark Sn	niths Ltd - I	^p ark End	RD FlexiSight+Classic					Setup Help +			Command bar
	08-49	9-56 1	8-01-1	12	3.1m		Create Report Delete Survey				÷	÷	
Media			/	and in		Ē	Survey		Date	Time 📇 📧	(1)	× "	
player	1 the second	1					MH1-MH2		24/01/2012	12:17 6 22	5		Survey
		1				É	MH1-MH2 MH1-MH3		05/01/2009	12:17 0 1	1	- - -	browser
	1.1								00000				
		8											
	24	e. 19	20										
	100	1	N.C.	100	1.								
	·												tup Help +
	-												
													† †
													ne 📇 📼 👁 🌉
													17 6 22 5 🔽
													17 0 1 1 🔽
	Observation	ns Video	s and Pictu	ures									
Observations	Create	Edit	Delete A	vailable	Videos 18Jan002_023.M	P4	 Unused Pictures 		- Create Sewer	.Dat WRC			
browser		K	=AB	CD	1			8,	• 0		1	4	
		1.2m	R		Roots			18Jan002.MP4	18Jar	n002.MP4_031.JPG	2	4	
		2m	D		Deformed drain/sewer 5%	8			18Jar	n001.JPG		2	
		3.31m	JD		Joint displaced Medium			18Jan002.MP4	18Jar	n002.MP4_014E02.JPG	1	4	
		4.61m	CM	S01	Cracks, multiple from 1 to	1 o'c	lock		18Jar	n003.JPG		•	
		Gm	CXI		Connection intruding at 3	o'clo	ck, diameter 50mmmm (intrusion 20%)		18Jar	n005.JPG	4	4	
					111 (5.)								
					ations Videos and Picture								
Videos and Pi	ctures b	prows	er	Crea	te Observation Edit Fi		Delete File Display Snapshots						
Videos and Pi	ctures b	prows	ser	Crea	te Observation Edit Fi 01.JPG 02.MP4		18	an002_029.JPG					
Videos and Pi	ctures b	prows	ser	Crea 18Jan 18Jan	te Observation Edit Fi 01.JPG 02.MP4 02.MP4		18	an002_029.JPG an003.JPG an004.JPG an005.JPG					
Videos and Pi	ctures b	orows	er	Crea 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan	te Observation Edit Fi 001_JPG 002_MP4 002_MP4_007_JPG 002_MP4_008_JPG 102_MP4_009_JPG 102_MP4_010_JPG		18	an003.JPG an004.JPG					
Videos and Pi	ctures b	prows	ser	Crea 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan	te Observation Edit Fi 101_JPG 102_MP4_007.JPG 102_MP4_008.JPG 102_MP4_008.JPG 102_MP4_008.JPG 102_MP4_010.JPG 102_MP4_011.JPG 102_MP4_011.JPG		18Jan002_006.JPG 18Jin002_016.MP4 18Jan002_017.MP4 18Jin102_017.MP4 18Jan002_018.MP4 18Jin102_018.MP4 18Jan002_018.MP4 18Jin102_018.MP4 18Jan002_02.02.JPG 18Jin102_02.02.JPG 18Jan002_02.02.JPG 18Jin102_02.2.MP4	an003.JPG an004.JPG					
Videos and Pi	ctures b	prows	ser	Crea 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan	te Observation Edit Fi 002.MP4 002.		18Jan002_006.JPG 18Jin 18Jan002_016.MP4 18Jin 18Jan002_017.MP4 18Jin 18Jan002_018.MP4 18Jin 18Jan002_018.MP4 18Jin 18Jan002_02.00.JPG 18Jan002_02.00.JPG 18Jan002_02.MP4 18Jan002_02.MP4 18Jan002_02.MP4 18Jan002_02.MP4 18Jan002_02.MP4 18Jan002_02.MP4 18Jan002_02.SFPG 18Jan002_02.SFPG	an003.JPG an004.JPG					
Videos and Pi	ctures b	prows	;er	Crea 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan	te Observation Edit Fi 001.0PG 002.MP4_007.JPG 002.MP4_008.JPG 002.MP4_009.JPG 002.MP4_010.JPG 002.MP4_011.JPG 002.MP4_011.JPG 002.MP4_014.JPG		18Jan002_006.JPG 18Jan002_016.MPA 18Jan002_016.MPA 18Jan002_017.MPA 18Jan002_018.MPA 18Ja 18Jan002_018.MPA 18Ja 18Jan002_020.JPG 18Jan002_021.PFG 18Jan002_021.PFG 18Jan002_022.MPA 18Jan002_022.MPG 18Jan002_022.MPA	an003.JPG an004.JPG					
Videos and Pi	ctures b	brows	;er →	Crea 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan 18Jan	te Observation Edit Fi 001_PG 002_MP4_007.JPG 002_MP4_008.JPG 002_MP4_008.JPG 002_MP4_010.JPG 002_MP4_010.JPG 002_MP4_014.JPG 002_MP4_014.JPG 002_MP4_014.JPG 002_MP4_014.JPG		18Jan002_006.JPG 18Jan002_016.MPA 18Jan002_016.MPA 18Ja 18Jan002_018.MPA 18Ja 18Jan002_018.MPA 18Ja 18Jan002_020.JPG 18Jan002_020.JPG 18Jan002_020.JPG 18Jan002_020.JPG 18Jan002_020.JPG 18Jan002_022.MPA 18Jan002_022.MPA 18Jan002_025.JPG 18Jan002_027.MP4 18Jan002_027.MPA	an003.JPG an004.JPG					

Figure 4.1 Site – Surveys Window

The Site - Surveys window is divided into 3 main areas:

- **Survey browser pane**: Lists all the surveys associated with the selected site and gives a summary of the media files and observations associated with each survey. See paragraph 4.2.
- Media player pane: Shows photos and plays videos.
- Survey details pane: Shows either the:

- **Observations browser** : This tab lists all the observations associated with the selected survey.
- Videos and Pictures browser: This tab lists all the video and photo files associated with the selected survey. See section 4.4.
- **Charts** : This tab displays any Pipe Inclinations Chart created using the inclinometer information (OPTIONAL paid module).

The Survey Browser Pane

The Surveys browser pane (Figure 4.2) lists all the surveys associated with the site selected in the Job browser window.

Each row shows a survey: identified by the start and finish references (for example MH1-MH2 if MH1 is the start chamber and MH2 is the finish chamber) and by the date it was conducted.

You can also see how many videos, pictures and observations are associated with the survey.

If you want to include any of your surveys in a report, you can do so by checking the **Include in Report** box. Each survey will be added in the order they are shown in the browser.

Surveys are listed in alphabetical order by survey name.

To modify the position of a survey within the printed report

1. Select the survey that you want to move by clicking on it.

2. Use the up and down arrows, located at the top of the Survey browser pane to change the survey position.



4.2 Review survey information

To review or modify the information associated with a survey, select it (in the survey browser pane) and the Survey Information screen (Figure 4.3) will be displayed.

- 1. Review or edit the survey details fields.
- 2. Press Save to save the changes.

```
NOTE: Invalid fields will be highlighted in Red
```

- or
- 3. Press Quit to cancel

MH368				
MH368				
18 July 2011				
19:47				
JR4568				
Crew 5				
Downstream 👻				
55m				
25				
25				
Masonry - in regular courses				
Foul				
Large 🗸 🗸				
Other 🗸				
Close fit lining 🗸 🗸				
85 🗸				
Routine inspection of condition				
Melting snow or ice 🔹				
This is a remark				

Figure 4.3 Survey information

4.3 Videos and pictures

To review, edit or delete videos and pictures associated with the selected survey, go to the **Videos and Pictures** tab (see Figure 4.1).

The Videos and Pictures browser will display all the media associated with the survey and highlight in red all the files which have not been associated or used in any observations (see Figure 4.4). From this area you will also be able to create observations. See Section 4.6 for more information.

FlexiSight Manager						
Job Browser Mark Smiths Ltd - Park End RD FlexiSight+Classic				Setup	Help •	
08:49:08 18-01-11 0.00m	Create Report D	elete Survey				+ +
MH1 DOWN STREAM		Survey	Date	Time	8 📼	@
PLASTIC DIAM 100MM	•	MH2-MH1	18/01/2011	12:17	1 5	2 🔽
DEPTH Q.55M		MH1-MH3	25/01/2012	12:17	0 1	₽ 0
Create Observation Edit File Delete File Display Sna	nchotc					
18Jan001.JPG 18Jan002.MPA 18Jan002.MPA 18Jan002.MPA 18Jan003.JPG 18Jan004.JPG 18Jan005.JPG 18Jan005.JPG	hung					
-				00:00:08.81	00:02:28.2	:8 <mark> 6</mark> 40X48

Figure 4.4 Videos and Pictures browser

- To review a media file just click on it once to open it in the relevant player.
- Press Edit File to open the associated editor. For more details on editing media files in FSM, see Section 6.

Press Delete File to delete the associated file.

CAUTION: The delete operation cannot be undone.

- Press **Create Observation** to create an observation associated to the selected media file. See Section 4.6 for more information.
- To quickly identify a specific picture press **Display Snapshots** to open a window displaying snapshots for all the pictures present in the survey folder (see Figure 4.5)
 - \circ Select a picture to show a larger version on the preview window.
 - Press Edit to edit the picture (See Section 5).
 - Press Cancel to close the window.

Display Snapshots - 18Jan	005.JPG		
	AREAU ALIMI MAND	08:50:53 18-01-1	1 6.Q3m
		Cancel	1-5 5

Figure 4.5 Display Snapshots

•

4.4 Reviewing a video

If you have selected a video, this will be displayed in the video media player (see Figure 4.6).

You can enlarge the window to full screen by pressing the Escape button on the keyboard. Press escape to return to the standard view.

There are a number of commands available:

- Use the slider in the **progress bar** to quickly move back and forward.
- Play: Starts the video playback.
- Pause: Pause the video playback.
- Stop: Stop the video playback.
- **Start/End**: Move to the first/last video frame of the video.
- **Prev/Next frame**: Move to the previous/ next frame.
- Playback speed: Control the playback speed (1/4X, 1/3X, 1/2X, 1X, 2X).
- Photo capture: Takes a still photo of the video

When playing a video FSM will display at the bottom right corner, the time elapsed, total time length and resolution of the video (see Figure 4.7)

restarges manages							
Job Browser Mark Smiths Ltd - Park End RD RexiSight+ Classic	1			Setup Help			
08 49 30 18-01-11 0.11	Create Repo	Delete Survey			+ +		
		Survey	Date ¹	Time 📇	a 🗠 🙀		
	•	MH1-MH2		12:17 1	4 🔽		
A CONTRACTOR OF		MH1-MH3	25/01/2012	12:17 0	9		
Observations Videos and Pictures							
Create Observation Edit File Delete File Display Sr	vanshots						
18Jan001.JPG	apmois						
ISJan002. MP4_007.JPG ISJan002.MP4_008.JPG ISJan002.06.JPG ISJan003.JPG							
							110
18Jan005.JPG							
			00	00:024.89 00:02:2	3.28 640X480	Versioner and March 1990	a second all leaves and 1
						00:00:24.89 00:02	2:28.28 640X480
							1
							' _
						Time elapsed	Video Resoluti
						•	

Total time length

Figure 4.7 Video information

	2 10:53:37014-01-11 12.89m DH P330 ProtoP3 150 brush	
Progress bar		
Diau -		
Play — Pause — Stop —	Start End	Photo capture Playback speed
- · · · F	Prev/Next frame	Flayback Speed

A CARLES AND A CARLE


4.5 Observations

Observations about the pipe conditions are usually created on site during the inspection survey.

Using your system controller you will be able to document your findings by creating detailed observations associated to a certain position, and catalogued by a Condition Codes. You can also associate observations to a picture and/or to video.

Observations are normally taken in accordance with recognized national standards and coded following specific Condition Codes lists.

By default, FlexiSight Manager supports Condition Codes lists compatible with WRC MSCC issue 3 and NASSCO PACP codes. You can also create your own Condition Codes list or customize the existing one to suit your needs. See Section 8.3.1 for more details.

NOTE: Observations details may vary depending on your system. P340 and GatorCam4 systems can also be customized to meet your specific reporting requirements. Refer to the FlexiSight Manager operation manual for further information.

4.5.1 Legacy Observations

Created using P350 (software prior to V3.00), P330+ and GatorCam3+.

Observations created by legacy systems are converted into a FSM compatible format when imported. These systems may have used the defect code file (defect_codes.txt) located in the root folder of the Memory card. If present when importing the Jobs this file will be converted as a new Condition Codes set and stored in the My Documents\FlexiSight Manager\Codes folder.

The stored filename will be DVC2x.XML, where **x** is a counter. Each time a different defect_codes.txt file is present during an import, a new DVC2x.XML file will be created where x is the next incremental number.

If the defect_codes.txt was not found in the root folder of the Memory card, FSM uses the defect_codes.txt file located in the My Documents\FlexiSight Manager\Report\Old folder. If a defect_codes_.txt does not exist in the My Documents\FlexiSight Manager\Report\Old folder, the import will use the currently selected defect code set (as set in the Setup section).

4.5.2 Observations Browser

You can review, edit and create new observations using the Observations Browser (see Figure 4.8). This displays the Observations for the selected Survey.

Selected Survey

				k Smiths Ltd	I\Park End RD\MH1_MH2_120124_1217	\18Jan005JPG				×	
	Job Browser Mark Smith	ns Ltd - Park E	nd RD FlexiSight+Classic	L				Setup	Help 🕶 📗		Include in
	08:50:53 18	-01-11	6.03m	Create R	eport Delete Survey				t	÷	Report
					Survey		Date	Time 6	5 IO @	× 144	
	Sec. 1.		Call of the state) ·	MH1-MH2		24/01/2012	12:17	6 22 5	N	K
	ALL STORES		and the		MH1-MH3		05/01/2009	12:17	0 1 1	9	
Command bar	Observations Videos a				✓ Unused Pictures		Create Sewer.C	Int DWPC 1			Condition Codes Set used
					onuscarrictares			at mite	18	W.	
		=AB CI				8.	• 0	02 MD4 021			
		R D	Roots Deformed drain/sewer 5%	6.		18Jan002.MP4		02.MP4_031.J 01.JPG	JPG 2	ব	
		JD	Joint displaced Medium			18Jan002.MP4	3/2/28/28	02.MP4_014E	02 JPG 1	v	
		CM S01	Cracks, multiple from 1 to	1 o'clock		root root root root root root root root	12/22/24/2	103.JPG		V	
		CXI			eter 50mmmm (intrusion 20%)		2000450	05.JPG	4		
Colour											Include in
Grade flag											Report
-	Distance	Con	tinuous defect			Associated	video		Gra	de	
	Condit	ion cod	e Conditior	n Codes	s description		Ass	ociated	picture		

Figure 4.8 Observation Browser

Observations are organized in rows and sorted by distance. Observations with no distance will be shown at the end of the list.

Each row provides the following information:

- Color Grade flag: color flag, based on the grade associated to the observation, used to quickly identify critical issues. See Section 8.2.4 for more information on how to customize the color grade table.
- Distance: observation distance from the survey's start point. Double click to edit the observation.
- Condition Code: Condition Codes associated to the observation. The Condition Codes set used is displayed on the command bar. See Section 8.3 on how to select a Condition Codes set.
- Continuous Defect: start or finish labels for continuous defects.
- Condition Codes description: extended Condition Codes description as defined in the Condition Codes set used.
- Associated video: video associated to the observation. If present, click on this to open the video in the media player and display the relevant frame.
- Associated picture: image associated to the observation. If present, click on this to display it in the media player.
- Grade: grade associated to the observation and Condition Codes used.

- Include in report: use this check box to indicate if you want to include the observation in the final report.
 - Double clicking on any row will edit the observation.

From the command bar:

- Press Create to create a new observation.
- Press Edit to edit the selected observation
- Press Delete to delete the selected observation.

A CAUTION: The delete operation cannot be undone.

• Press Create Sewer.Dat to create a sewer.dat (MSCC Issue 4) compatible file.

4.5.3 Create or edit an observation

You can create an observation from the **Videos and Pictures** or **Observations** browsers. You can edit any observation from the **Observations** browser.

If you create an observation whilst reviewing a picture this will be automatically added to the observation.

To create an observation during video playback, press pause at the desired location and press **Create Observation**. To add a picture press **Snapshot** to record a new picture, the **previous/next frame** buttons allow the user to fine-tune image frame selection.

1. Press Create Observation to start the process to create your observation.

Code	Description	
CL	Crack, longitudinal at o'clock	
CC	Crack, circumferential from to o'clock	
CM	Cracks, multiple from to o'clock	
FL	Fracture, longitudinal at o'clock	
FC	Fracture, circumferential from to o'clock	
FM	Fractures, multiple from to o'clock	
В	Broken pipe at (OR from to) o'clock	
Н	Hole in drain/sewer at (OR from to) o'clock	
D	Deformed drain/sewer%	
XP	Collapsed drain/sewer	
JD	Joint displaced	
OJ	Open joint	
S	Surface damage	
R	Roots	
1	Infiltration	
DEE	Attached deposits, encrustation at (OR from to) o'clock% cross-sectional area loss	
DEG	Attached deposits, grease at (OR from to) o'clock% cross-sectional area loss	
DES	Settled deposits fine% cross-sectional area loss	
DER	Settled deposits coarse% cross-sectional area loss	
	Save Canc	el 🛛

Figure 4.9 Condition Codes browser

The Condition Codes browser (Figure 4.9) will appear: make a selection by browsing the list and double-clicking on the defect code or type the code in the text box.

Once you have made a selection press **Save** to continue or **Cancel** to return to the previous screen. See Section 8.3.1 for detailed information about choosing, creating or customizing the Condition Codes set.

2. The defect code screen will open: (see Figure 4.10).





Figure 4.10 Condition Codes Screen

NOTE: the list of fields shown is dependent on the Condition Codes selected.

- Enter your measurements and observations as required.
- Enter the **distance** from the start of the survey to where the observation was taken. If required copy this from the picture or video's counter field The distance must include the measurement units (ft or m).
- Select the **Include in Word Report** box if you want the observation to be present in the final report.
- Depending on the media selected when your observation creation was initiated you can chose to:

Creation from a video:

- Select the **Include Picture** box if you want take a snapshot of the video and include it in your observation.
- Select the Edit Picture if you wish to edit your picture before saving the observation.

Creation from a picture:

- Press Edit Picture if you wish to edit your picture before saving the observation.
- Press **Continuous Defect** to identify the start or the end of a continuous code (see Figure 4.11).

Continuous defects are used to identify defects which extend or repeat beyond the first meter from the initial observation point.

- Press Start to set the next available starting label. Start codes have the following structure: Snn where nn is a numeric counter from 01 to 99. This is the only command available for the start of the first continuous defect.
- Press Finish to select the finishing code from the drop down menu. Finish codes have the following structure: Fnn where nn is a numeric counter from 01 to 99.
- Press **Clear** to clear any start or finish codes.
- Press **Save** or **Cancel**.

NOTE: When using **Continuous** Defects, the "Finish" marker has to be the same fault type (Condition Code) as the "Start". If you set the Finish marker for a Continuous Defect on an observation with a different Condition Codes to the Start, it will be changed to match the Start and the associated data discarded.

- Press **Change Code** if you wish to go back to the defect codes browser and select another one.
- Press **OK** to save the observation or Cancel to abort the operation.
- 3. Edit your picture if requested. See Section 5 for more details.

The new observation will appear in the Observation browser.

4.6 Create and Edit Pipe Inclination Charts

The controller saves crawler inclination log data in the **JOBS** Survey folder on the memory card. By default this setting is turned off. If it is not recording, check the latest software is installed and the feature is enabled in the settings menu (**MENU>SETUP>EQUIPMENT**, **Pitch Profiler: ON**).

If FlexiSight Manager does not detect Pipe Inclination data, the chart window will not display.

The Pipe Inclination Chart window will not be available until an upgrade license is purchased and the upgrade activated via the FlexiSight Manager User Manager program online. See Section 2.5 'Upgrading to the Pipe Inclination Analysis Module.

To view chart information, click the '**Charts**' tab on the left of the screen (see figure 4.11a on the following page).

Start/Finish Code		
Start		
Finish	•	
Clear		
Save	Cancel	

Figure 4.11 Continuous Defect window

The main window will now display the elevation chart, showing the survey length and calculated height. Clicking a location along the line will display Distance and Elevation in the **Position** window.



Figure 4.11a The Pipe Inclination Analysis Module.

The view can be customized. Click-and-drag the mouse along the chart to zoom in, release the mouse when the red selection box covers the required area.

The coloured horizontal lines at the top of the chart (immediately below the 'Elevation Chart' text) show where video was recorded along the survey path. The top line shows where the crawler is 'driving forward', while the bottom line shows where the crawler is 'driving backward'. The current active video displayed on the left will be coloured green (the inactive video will be coloured red).



Figure 4.11b Chart Editing Options

Right clicking the mouse along the chart line provides options to:

- Change the Line colour
- View the Line position information
- Create Annotated text entries

Right-clicking the mouse in the general chart area will allow the user to change the Chart Title.



Figure 4.11c The Chart View Editor

The Chart View Editor allows custom views and optional display information.

- **Observations**: Displays survey observations along the length of the survey. Enable or disable depending on the survey requirements.
- **Display**: Modify the chart display information.
 - **Reset Zoom**: Resets the chart to the default auto-size.
 - **Elevation / pitch**: Elevation mode displays the calculated height of the system along the survey. Pitch mode displays the angle of the crawler along the survey.
 - **Units:** Select Metric (m) or Imperial (feet).
 - **Scale:** Increase or decrease the scale sizing of the graph to suit the visual requirements of the survey. Selectable scales between 1:1 and 1:300.
 - Measure: When this box is checked, it allows users to drag-and-click the mouse button between two points of interest, calculating the average slope between those points and displaying the details. This draws a green dotted-line along the pipe inclination chart and calculates the gradient between these points. The information is then displayed in the Measurement window in the bottom right window and in the final Word survey document. See figure 4.11d on the next page for an example.

CAUTION: You will not be able to use the video position cursor if the Measurement checkbox is checked. Similarly you cannot take a measurement unless the Measurement checkbox is checked.



Figure 4.11d The Gradient Measuring Tool

The gradient measuring tool in operation above.

Observations Videos and Pictures Charts Save View Rename View Delete V		t
View Name	File	~
29Apr_001	29Apr_001	1
> 29Apr_001_custom zoom	29Apr_001	V

4.11e The Pipe Inclination View Manager

It may be useful to provide multiple viewing angles, or close ups of chart sections. The View Manager allows multiple views to be saved, stored, edited and included in the Word Report.

- **Save View:** Save the current chart view, enter a suitable name in the pop up window and press OK to save.
- Rename View: Rename an existing view.
- **Delete View:** You can delete a view by using the Delete View button.
- W+: Ticking the boxes adds the view to the Microsoft Word Survey report. The Up and Down arrows control the order the views appear in the survey.

Multiple views may be useful if the operator wishes to highlight multiple sections of interest along a pipe survey. The view must be saved and enabled (using the W+ box above) to be shown in the final report.

Elevation Chart





Position	Code	Description/Remarks	Grade
0.34m	CL	Crack, longitudinal at 4 o'clock. Minor cracking at 4 o clock. No remedial work necessary	1
0.5m	D	Deformed drain/sewer 10%. Minor deformed top of pipe, review annually and if pipe blockages interfere with <u>waterflow</u> .	1
2.6m	ОВ	Other obstacles 100% height/diameter loss. Total blockage of pipe with large blue cloth material, preventing water flow. Recommend remedial work.	5

Figure 4.11f Survey Report Example

4.7 Microsoft Word Survey Reports

NOTE: Microsoft Word 2007 or above is required with Macro functionality enabled, Office 365 and other similar online office suites are not currently supported.

You can create a detailed Microsoft Word report of your survey(s):

- Use the **Include in Report** check boxes (Figure 4.8) to select the survey(s) required and for each of these select the observations you wish to include in your report.
- Use the up and down arrows to re-order the surveys if required (see Section 4.2).
- Press the **Create Report** button from the command bar on the top of the Survey browser (see Figure 4.1).

By default FSM will create a report file named after the site address and save it into the site folder. If a report file with the same name is already present, a window will appear to ask you to indicate a new file name.

The report window will open, providing progress details of the report creation (see Figure 4.12).

Create Report - C:\Users\ajones21\Documents\Jobs\JFAT Exhibition - Demo #1\Radiodetection HQ\Radiodetection HQ.Doc	
Adding Observations (4) 1	*
2 3 4	
Adding Pipe Picture Adding Observation Table (4)	
1 2 3	
4 Adding Charts (1) Chart 1	E
Adding Chart Observations 1 2 3	
4 Adding Glossary	
Processing Finished	-
Cancel	Finish

Figure 4.12 Report Window

• Press **Cancel** to abort the operation or **Finish**, once the process is finished, to open the Word Document.

Use MS Word to review and edit your final report.

The resulting Word template can be customized to suit requirements. See Section 9 for details.

4.7.1 Converting Word files to PDF

FSM does not support PDF files. PDF files cannot be viewed or edited from within FSM.

To save a Word Survey as a PDF file (or another different file format), use the Microsoft Word **Save As** facility.

When using MS Office 2007 or higher the report can be saved using the Word's *Save As* function and selecting PDF as the output format.

NOTE: When using MS Office 2007 there may be a requirement to download an optional Add-In from Microsoft. Contact your IT department for more information.

With earlier versions of MS Office, PDF files can be created by installing a third party PDF creator. Please contact your IT department for more information.

Files saved in formats other than .doc are not supported and cannot be viewed or edited by FSM.

Section 5 - Editing a picture

Edit or annotate a picture by adding texts and graphics. Just select the picture to modify and press the edit button.



Figure 5.1 Edit Picture Screen

The Edit Picture screen (Figure 5.1) shows the editable picture and a series of controls:

- Arrow Selection: Adds a graphical arrow anywhere on the picture (see Section 5.1).
- Circle Selection: Adds a graphical circle anywhere on the picture (see Section 5.2).
- Graphics Color: Set the color for the graphics objects (see Section 5.3)
- **Text Selection**: Adds text anywhere on the picture (see Section 5.4).
- **Text Color**: Sets the color for the text (see Section 5.5).
- **Set Font**: Set the fonts for the text (see Section 5.6).
- **Reload Picture**: Reload the picture and undo all changes.

A CAUTION: The reloading operation cannot be undone.

- Save: Save picture.
- Cancel: Cancel operation
- Undo: Undo last change.

5.1 Adding shapes to pictures

You can place an arrow anywhere on the picture you are editing:

- 1. Left click the mouse on the chosen arrow.
- 2. Move the mouse to the desired position on your picture.

NOTE: The cursor now has the chosen arrow.

- 3. Left click the mouse. The arrow will now be positioned on the picture.
- 4. If you make a mistake in placing the arrow press Undo.

You can change the color of the arrow by selecting a different graphic color (see Section 5.3).

You can place a circle anywhere on the picture you are editing:

- 1. Left click the mouse on the circle.
- 2. Move the mouse to the desired center position for the circle on the picture.

NOTE: The Cursor is a Cross-Hair

- 5. Hold Down the left button of the mouse.
- 6. Drag the mouse away from the chosen center.

NOTE: This is the circle radius

- 7. Release the left button of the mouse.
- 8. If you make a mistake in placing the circle press Undo.

You can change the color of the arrow by selecting a different graphic color, see the Section below.

Graphic Color

The current graphic color is indicated adjacent to the Graphic Color button.

To change graphic color, press the **Graphic Color** button:

- 1. The Color Selection screen will appear (see Figure 5.2).
- 2. Select the required color from the palette.



Figure 5.2 Color palette

5.2 Adding text to your picture

You can place a text anywhere on the picture you are editing:

- 1. Enter the text you wish to add to the picture in the text box at the bottom right corner of the edit picture screen
- 2. Left click the mouse on the text selection (Aa)
- 3. Move the mouse to the desired position on your picture

NOTE: The cursor is a vertical bar. The text is positioned to the right of the cursor, with the lower edge of the text level with the bottom of the cursor.

- 4. Left click the mouse. The text will now be positioned on your picture.
- 5. If you make a mistake in placing the text press Undo.

You can change text font and color.

Changing text color and font

The current text color is indicated adjacent to the **Text Color** button.

To change text color, press the **Text Color** button:

- 1. The Color Selection Screen will appear (see Figure 5.2).
- 2. Select the required color from the palette.

The current font selection is displayed on the window below the **Set Font** button.

To change text font, press the Set Font button:

- 1. A font selection screen will appear (see Figure 5.3).
- 2. Make your selections and press **OK** or **Apply**.



Figure 5.3 Set Text Font

Section 6 - Editing a Video

This section provides instructions on how to use the FSM video editor which allows you to cut or merge one or more videos to produce a video showing only the relevant parts of the surveys. This is very useful when trying to reduce the size of a video file.

Replace Selected Cut ASTIC AM 100MM PTH 0.55M Replace Selected Cut Delete Selected Cut Delete All Cuts	Start End Duration 00:00:08.85 00:00:14.86 00:00:06.01 00:00:14.26 00:01:08.77 00:00:27.51 *	Cut Table
Delete All Cuts		
	Cut List Duration 00:00:33.51	
I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	Add New Cut Set 0.00.000 Set Cut Start Jump Set End Clear Cut Values Create New Video	Cuts controls
	II III IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	Concatenate Concat

NOTE: FSM Video editor only supports MP4 files that were created with a compatible controller.

Figure 6.1 Video Editor Screen

6.1 Video Editor Screen

You can edit a video file by selecting and pressing edit.

The FSM video editor screen (Figure 6.1) provides with a video player and comprehensive and intuitive functions to take video Snapshots and to cut the video to include only selected parts. Different videos can also be concatenated into a single media file:

File Path

The upper portion of the video editor screen shows, the file name and location in your PC (see file path in Figure 6.1).

Video Information

When playing a video FSM will display, at the bottom right corner of the video editor screen, the time elapsed, total time length and resolution of the video.

Command bar

Use File to create a backup copy of or close your opened video and to select a different video file.

FSM provides a series of buttons to take and review snapshots (pictures) of the video being re-produced.

Display Snapshots

This allows the user to display all the JPEG image files saved in a folder.

Snapshot

This button takes a picture of the currently displayed image, and stores it into the folder and filename of your choice.

Сору

This button takes a picture of the currently displayed image, and stores it in the system's clipboard. This is useful if you wish to paste the image into an external document or e-mail.

6.2 Video Player

The video player pane displays the opened video file. Press **Esc** on the keyboard to switch to a "full-screen" view of the video (see Figure 6.2).



Figure 6.2 Video editor in "full screen mode"

Use the **Play Controls** menu on the bottom right of the full screen window to display or hide the **volume** and **play** controls.

You can move the volume and play control bars anywhere on the screen.

The video player commands give you control of the video displayed on the player screen (see Figure 6.3).

Play

Press this button to play the selected video file.

Pause

Press this button to pause the video. Press the Play button to resume.

Stop

Selecting this button stops the player.

First Frame

Selecting this button rewinds the video to the first frame.



Figure 6.3 Video player commands

Previous/Next Frame

Selecting these buttons moves the video file to the previous/next frame.

Last Frame

Selecting this button advances the video to the last frame.

Repeat

This button toggles on and off the play repeat function. When the repeat button is selected the video will play continuously.

Volume

Use this slider to adjust the sound volume level.

Mute

Use this button to mute or un-mute the sound.

Progress bar

This control shows the playing progress of the video file.

You can use this to select a particular position of a video position: select the slider by holding down the left mouse button and slide to the desired position on the video. Release the left button.

The control also shows the location of any selected cuts as colored bars above the control slider. See paragraph 6.41 for more information.

6.3 Merging video files

Use this button to merge two or more MP4 video files into a single video file. This is useful if you have more than one file for a survey.

1. Press the **Concatenate** button: the Concatenate window will appear (see Figure 6.4).

nt Files 	
C:\14 JAN P340 PAL SET3_cut.MP4 C:\test.mp4	Add File
	Remove Selected File
	+
	4
	Concatenate
	Close

Figure 6.4 Concatenate window

- 2. Press Add file to select the files you wish to concatenate.
- 3. Video files will be concatenated in the order they are shown in this screen. Top file first, last file last. Use the arrow buttons to modify the concatenation order.
- 4. Press **Remove Selected File**, if you wish to remove the highlighted file.
- 5. Press **Cancel** to quit
- 6. Press Concatenate to produce the concatenated file. The Save As window will appear.

NOTE: Video files must match as resolution and bit rate.

6.4 Cutting a video

You can cut a video to show just your problematic area. This is useful to reduce the video file size and to minimize storage requirements.

Setting up your cuts

Video Editor - C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents\Jobs\Mark Smith	s Ltd\Park End RD\MH1_MH2_120	124_1217\18Jan002.MP4					×
File							
08:50:09 18-01-11 3.	.78m		S	tart	End	Durati	on
		Replace Selected Cut	> *				
and the second second second		Edit Selected Cut					
	V Statute	Delete Selected Cut					
and the second second second		Delete All Cuts					
	1 million						
AL AND							
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Real States P						
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Star 1						
A CARDINA SECTION	the state		-				
	End cut marker						
\frown	0	Start time	referer	ice			
Start cut marke	er			0.	dd New Cut		
	Concatenate	V					
	Display Snapshots	00:00:42.52	Set 0:00:0		et Cut Start	Jum	
Volume	Snapshot	00:01:04.50	Set End		et Q Sets the cu	t start poi	nt
	Сору	00:00:21.97	-		ar Cut Values		
		_/`	$\overline{\ }$		te New Video		
		1			00:01:04.50 00:	02:28.28	040X480
	End	time reference	Cut	durati	on		

Figure 6.5 Setting up a cut

- 1. Slide the video progress bar to locate the frame in which to position you start cut marker (see Figure 6.5).
- 2. Press the **Set Cut Start** button. You can also press the **Set 0:00:000** button to set the start marker of the active cut to the beginning of the video. Note the start time reference.
- 3. Identify the frame in which to position the end marker.
- 4. Press the **Set Cut End** button. You can also press the **Set End** button to set the end marker of the active cut to the end of the video. Note the end time video stamp reference and the cut duration.
- 5. Press Clear Cut Values if you wish to start again.
- 6. Press the **Add New Cut** button: your cuts will now be shown in the cut table and the portion of the video selected will be highlighted in the color bar (see Figure 6.6).
- 7. Repeat the steps above to add further cuts.

fideo Editor - C:\Users\aiaccarino\Documents\Jobs\Mark Smiths Ltd\Park End RD\MH1_MH2_1201 File	24_1217\18Jan002.MP4			
08:51:06 18-01-11 5.91m	Replace Selected Cut Edit Selected Cut Delete Selected Cut Delete All Cuts	Start 00:00:4 00:01:3 *	3.27 00:01:47.02	Duration 00:00:21.97 00:00:13.75 00:00:06.64
			Cut List Duration	00:00:42.37
Image: State		Set 0:00:000	Add New Cut Set Cut Start Set Cut End	Jump
Сору			Clear Cut Values Create New Video	
			00:02:01.41 0	0:02:28.28 640X48

Figure 6.6 Multiple cuts in a video

Editing video cuts

You can edit or delete cuts present in the cut table (see Figure 6.6).

- 1. Press Delete All Cuts to delete all cuts present in the cut table.
- 2. Press **Delete Selected Cut** to delete just the highlighted cut.
- 3. Press Edit Selected Cut to edit the highlighted cut. Make the required adjustments to the start or/and end marker and press Replace Selected Cut.

Creating a new video file

Once you are ready to create a new video file incorporating all your cuts press the **Create New Video** button.

NOTE: The source file video is not changed during the creation of a new video. The new video will be made from the highlighted sections of the video.

The Save As window will open. If you wish you can enter a new file name.

Press Save to proceed with the file creation or Cancel to quit.

Section 7 - FlexiSight + Classic Window

FlexiSight+ Classic allows the creation of P330+, GatorCam3+ and P350 reports without the need to import them into the FSM environment.

You can also use the FlexiSight+ Classic window to edit compatible videos. Refer to Section 6 on instructions on how to edit your video files.

Job Browser Surveys FlexSight+ Classic File Report 15:15:24 93-03-11 CAL Feplace Selected Cut Edit Selected Cut Delete Selected Cut Delete All Cuts	Control Contro	
15:15:24 Q3-03-11 CAL Stat 00:00:00. Replace Selected Cut Edit Selected Cut * *	0.68 00:00:01.49 00:00:00.8	
Replace Selected Cut Edit Selected Cut Delete Selected Cut	0.68 00:00:01.49 00:00:00.8	
Replace Selected Cut Edit Selected Cut Delete Selected Cut	Control Contro	
Edit Selected Cut Delete Selected Cut	1.52 00:00:03.32 00:00:00.80	0
Edit Selected Cut		
Delete Selected Cut		
Delete All Cuts		
Ţ		
	Cut List Duration 00:00:01	C1
Ū		.01
		5
Concatenate	Add New Cut	
▶ II ■ I44 4II III ▶ Φ 1× ■ Display Snapshots Set 0:00:000	Set Cut Start	
Set End	Jump Jump	
Volume Snapshot		=
	Clear Cut Values	
	Create New Video	
	00:00:03.32 00:00:08.61 64	0X480
	00:00:46.43 00:03:59.84 6	

Figure 7.1 FlexiSight+ Classic Screen

7.1 Creating a Report

You can use your P330+, GatorCam3+ or P350 controller to create a report on site. This is generated as a series of HTML documents organized into a number of subfolders contained in the main report folder. The principle is similar to that of an internet website.

By default, the report folder is stored in the current default working folder of the Memory card and is named according to the name you gave the report when you created it.

Refer to the relevant operation manual for more detailed information on how to use you controller to create a report.

NOTE: You need to ensure you have copied the Defect_Codes.txt file used in the My Documents \FlexiSight Manager\Report\Old\ directory

Þ C	Searches		5
Þ 🔟	Tracing		
۵ 💷 (Computer		
	Local Disk (C	:)	
	DVD RW Driv		
4 _	Removable I	Disk (E:)	
4	DVC		_
	📕 05Jan		
	🔒 07Dec		
	🖌 📗 Report	1	-
•			

Figure 7.2 Selecting a Classic Report

You can create a word report based on the original report created on site:

- Select Report from the command bar.
- Navigate to the folder containing the report
- Press **OK** to create the report or **Cancel** to abort.
- MS Word will open and show the converted report.

Section 8 - Setup Options

You can customize FSM and your compatible controller (P340USB and GatorCam4USB) to suit your company needs.

8.1 Setup Menu Options

You can access the setup menu by selecting Setup from FSM main window command bar (see Figure 8.1).

\Users\aiaccarino∖Documents\Jobs\Mark Smiths ∐d\Park	End RD		
	Jobs	Reports	<u> </u>
Import Edit Delete		Edit Rename Delete	Setup men
Griefal County Tourist Centre G-Derek Smith G-Derek Smith G-Derek Smith G-Derek Smith G-Darek Smith Dynamic Gas Pipelines Inc. G-John Owsley Kentish Fam Products Unit 44 Mark Smiths Ltd Mark Smiths Ltd G-Mark Smiths		Park End RD.Doc	
Survey Filter V All Last Week Last Month	Sub Filter		
Last Year Apply Filter Select Dates	Crew 🗸		
From 15 February 2012 "#" To 15 February 2012 "#"			

Figure 8.1 Setup in FSM Command Bar

The FSM Setup menu has 3 tabs (see Figure 8.2).

- Local, for general FSM settings (see section 8.2).
- System, for system wide settings such as Jobs templates, Condition Codes and Survey Parameters. These settings will have to be exported to the inspection system controller (see section 8.3).
- Controller, to create and edit text pages and to create system settings files to customize your controller(s) (see Section 8.4).

Select Exit to close the Setup Screen

8.2 Local settings tab

The Local tab is used to modify general FSM settings (see section 8.2).

Setup Options	_
Local System Controller	
These settings apply only to FlexiSight Manager.	
FlexiSight User Manager	Run User Manager
Jobs folder location	
C:\Users\ajones21\Documents\Jobs	
Language setting	Language
Company Information	Company
Report layout options	Report
	Exit

Figure 8.2 Local Setup Tab

8.2.1 FlexiSight User Manager

Set	tup Options	
	Local System Controller	
	These settings apply only to FlexiSight Manager.	
	FlexiSight User Manager	Run User Manager

Figure 8.2a – User Manager

See section 2.5 for information on using FlexiSight Manager User Manager.

8.2.2 Jobs folder location

You can modify the default location for your Jobs folder.

The Jobs folder is the area on your PC into which FSM imports the survey files created with your inspection system.

NOTE: It is important to back-up at regular interval the Jobs folder as well as the content of the FSM settings folder (*My Documents \FlexiSight Manager*) to protect against hardware failure or to recover data accidentally deleted or modified.

By default the location of the FSM Jobs folder is in your PCs default document folder. For example:

..\UserName\My Documents\Jobs

To modify the Jobs folder location:

- 1. Press the Jobs folder browse button in the setup tab (see Figure 8.2).
- 2. Navigate to the desired folder, or create a new one.
- 3. Press OK

8.2.3 Language Selection

Click on the Flag to select the required language.

Language Setup	×

Figure 8.3 Language Setup

8.2.4 Edit Company Information.

Select **Company** to enter the Company Information screen (see Figure 8.4).

Use this screen to edit the company information that will be used to when creating FSM reports. See Section 4.7 for more information about creating a report.

You can customize the Company information by editing, adding or remove the company fields (see Section 8.3).

Logo	logo.jpg 🔹 🔹
Company	Radiodetection Ltd
Crew	
Address	Western Drive
Town	Bristol
State/County	
ZIP/Postcode	BS14 0AF
Telephone	1234567
Fax	777321
Email	someone@somplace.com

Figure 8.4 Company Information Screen

Press Save to save your changes made and exit.

Press Quit to ignore any changes made and exit.

8.2.5 Report Layout Options

Select Report to enter the Report Options screen (see Figure 8.5.)

Use this screen to edit information present in the FSM report. See Section 7.1 for more information about creating a report.

port Options		
Defect Code Set	WRC	
Add code description to C	Observation	
Add notes to Observation		
Add Pipe Picture		
Vise Grade Colours		
Grade Colours		
Grade 5	Aa	
Grade 4	Aa	
Grade 3	Aa	
Grade 2	Aa	
Grade 1	Aa	
ок		Cancel
UK		Cancel

Figure 8.5 Report Options

- Add code description to observation: This option sets the report to display the defect code text description alongside each defect code label.
- Add code notes to observation: This option sets the report to display the defect code remarks or notes.
- Add Pipe Graph: This option sets the report to display a pipe Graph of the observations.
- Use Grade Colors: This option when set will display the observations in the color defined for the grade of fault. If disabled all observations are printed in the default MS Word color.

Grade Colors

Each Grade color can be set by the user. Click on the appropriate Grade button to open a color selector.

- Press **OK** to exit the screen and save your changes.
- Press Cancel to exit the screen and ignore any changes

8.3 System SettingsTab

The System settings tab (Figure 8.6) allows choosing and customizing Condition Codes and Survey Parameters used by FSM and compatible system controllers to create observations and reports. It also allows customization of Jobs Templates by modifying the Client, Site, Survey and Observation tables as well as renaming the Free Text option.

NOTE: Any	/ changes	made must b	be exported	to all vou	compatible	controllers.
	y onlangee	made made	be experied	to an your	oompanoio	001101010101

ocal System Controller Changes to Condition Codes, Survey Parameters or Job Templates must	t be exported to all compatible c	ontrollers.
Default Condition Codes and Survey Parameters set	WRC	•
Create/Edit custom Condition Codes and Survey Parameters set		des and rameters
Customise Job Templates	Job	Templates

Figure 8.6 System Settings

8.3.1 Condition Codes and Survey Parameters Set

Condition Codes and Survey Parameters are used to describe in a standard and concise way survey details and any issue identified during the survey operation.

Depending on the applicable standards in your area and the nature and use of the pipes you normally survey, you will need to choose or define appropriate Condition Codes and Survey Parameters set for your observations and survey details.

By default, FSM supports Condition Codes and Survey Parameters as defined by the WRC Manual of Sewer Condition Classification 4th edition and by NASSCO (US National Association of Sewer Service Companies) PACP (Pipeline Assessment Certification Program).

You can edit, modify or create new Condition Codes and Survey Parameters sets based on the WRC or PACP sets.

Default Condition Codes and Survey Parameters set

Choose the default FSM set by selecting between the available Condition Codes and Survey Parameters sets.

On compatible controllers, the system uses the default set when exporting Condition Codes and Survey Parameters. For P340 and Gatorcam4 Controller this requires Software version 3.7 and higher, or P350 Software version 4.0 and higher.

Create/Edit custom Condition Codes and Survey Parameters sets

Press Codes and Parameters to Create/Edit custom Condition Codes and Survey Parameters sets.

The Custom Condition Codes and Survey Parameters sets selection screen (Figure 8.7) will open and let you choose an existing set to edit or a pre-defined set such as WRC or PACP to copy and modify.

te	te	te Edit

Figure 8.7 Selecting a Condition Codes and Survey Parameters sets

- **New**: press this to create a new user set based on the selected one. See section 8.3.1.3 for further details.
- Delete: press this to delete the selected user set.
- **Edit**: press this to edit the selected user set.
- **Exit**: select to exit the screen.

NOTE The New, Delete or Edit buttons are context sensitive and only available when permitted.

Codes and Survey Parameters set editor

The codes and parameters set editor allows you customize Condition Codes and Survey Parameters (see Figure 8.8).

_	Code	Description		Categories
	CL	Crack, longitudinal at o'clock		Condition Codes
	CC	Crack, circumferential from to o'clock		
	CM	Cracks, multiple from to o'clock		Materials
	FL	Fracture, longitudinal at o'clock	Ξ	Shape
	FC	Fracture, circumferential from to o'clock		Grades
	FM	Fractures, multiple from to o'clock		
	В	Broken pipe at (OR from to) o'clock		Joints
	н	Hole in drain/sewer at (OR from to) o'clock		Bands
	D	Deformed drain/sewer%		Percent
	XP	Collapsed drain/sewer		Clock
	JD	Joint displaced		
	OJ	Open joint		Direction
	S	Surface damage		Use
	R	Roots		Lining
	1	Infiltration		
	DEE	Attached deposits, encrustation at (OR from to) o'clock% cross-sectional area loss		Purpose
	DEG	Attached deposits, grease at (OR from to) o'clock% cross-sectional area loss		Weather
	DES	Settled deposits fine% cross-sectional area loss		
	050	entre	-	
_		New Edit		
		New Edit		Delete
		Save	_	Cancel

Figure 8.8 Condition Codes and Survey Parameters set editor

The following categories are used by a compatible controller and FlexiSight Manager.

- Condition Codes The codes and their description and definition.
- Materials The material that the sewer is made from.
- Shape The shape of the sewer.
- Grades The Fault grades.
- Joints Joint codes.
- Bands Sizes.
- Percent Allowable values for selection.
- Clock Clock Face values.
- Direction Flow Direction.
- Use Type of use for the pipe.
- Lining Pipe lining descriptions.
- Purpose Purpose of the Survey.
- Weather The Weather during the survey.

For example you can start from the pre-defined WRC code set and customize this set by adding new Condition Codes or by adding new Survey Parameters like materials or shapes.

Select any of the above categories to load the data into the editor.

There are 3 editor commands available:

NOTE: For Clock and Percent categories both the Code and Description must be numeric. The Code and Description fields must be identical (i.e. Code = 24, Description = 24).

- New: creates a new item for the category selected.
- Edit: to modify the selected item.
- **Delete**: to remove the selected item.

For example you may wish to create a new condition code: **PM** to report "**Paint Marks**" as either:

• Paint Mark at 2 o'clock

or

- Paint Mark from 2 o'clock to 4 o'clock
- 1 Select Condition Codes in the category pane
- 2 Press New and give it a unique code (up to 7 characters) "PM" in this case.
- 3 Select a suitable code template from the list of available types.

ondition Codes template selector			
Examples:			
Hole in drain/sewer at (OR fr	rom to) o'clock		
Hole in drain/sewer at (OR fr	rom to) o'clock bric	k missing	
Usage: [text] at CLOCKVALUE (OF Use the arrow keys to select the 'Message Type'			ext]
		ок	Cancel

Figure 8.9 Condition Code template selector

4 Enter the text you want to appear in the code description (see Figure 8.10).

	Condition Code Text editor
	Example: Paint Mark at (OR from to)o'clock
	Usage:
	Paint Mark
	o'clock
Code	
description	
	Paint Mark at (OR from to)o'clock
	OK Cancel

Figure 8.10 Condition Code Text editor

The final description of the Condition Codes is displayed at the bottom of the screen

5 Press **OK** to add your code to the custom Condition Codes set or **Cancel** to exit.

You can follow the above procedure to customize any of the available categories.

Once you finish customizing the set you need to save your changes:

Press Save to commit your changes or press Cancel to close the screen without saving.

CAUTION: If you close the screen without saving your changes you will lose any changes you have made to the selected set.

Sharing Condition Codes and Survey Parameters sets

Condition Codes and Survey Parameters sets are saved in a single file, with a .XML extension, stored in the following folder:

My Documents \FlexiSight Manager\ Codes.

The file set name is based on the name given to the custom set + a numeric index. For example if you have saved a custom set as MySet, the file name will be MySetX.xml, where X is a numeric index based on your default language.

The language index is as follows

English(UK)	English(US)	French	German	Spanish	Italian	Holland	Polish
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7

You can share a custom set with other FlexiSight Manager users by copying the file set from your computer into the My Documents \FlexiSight Manager\ Codes folder on each computer.

8.3.2 Job Template editor

You can customize the job templates used by the controller and FSM. You can add, remove and change most fields used in the Client, Site, Survey, Observation and Free-text tables.

You can also modify the Company table used by FSM to create your report. The controller's Company table fields cannot be modified.

Press **Job Templates** to enter the Job Templates editor (see Figure 8.11).



Figure 8.11 Job Template editor

Select the job template to edit (Client, Site, Survey, etc.) in the selection box at the top of the editor window. Job Templates available for edit are

- Company Your Company details used by FSM when generating a report.
- Client Client's details
- Site Site's details
- Survey Survey's details
- **Observations** Observation's details
- Free Text General survey commentary

NOTE: You may add and delete fields for all structures except Observations and Free Text where you will only be able to modify text legends.

The editor window is structured in 2 panes: the left one shows available fields, the right shows the fields included in the selected job template (template structure).

- To add an existing field to the selected job template, select it in the left pane and press the '+' button. The item will appear at the bottom of the template structure in the right pane.
- To remove a field from the job template, select it in the right pane and press the '-' button.
- To change the order, select the field in the right pane and press the 'Up' or 'Down' buttons.

You can add new user fields or modify existing one:

NOTE: FSM has critical fields which cannot be renamed or deleted. These fields are highlighted in red in the right pane.

• Press New to create a user field

This function creates a new field. You are prompted for the following:

New User Field Name. This name must be unique and contain no blank spaces (see Figure 8.12).

ew User Field Nam	e	
MyUserField		
	ОК	Cancel

Figure 8.12 New User Field Name

This field name is used by FSM and MS Word to create the final report.

User fields with a name similar to existing one should be preceded with a character to make it unique. For example: if you have a field **MyUserField** and you want make a field **MyUserFieldxx** make the field as **UMyUserFieldxx**. This is to address a Microsoft Word automation process issue where Word erroneously selects part strings.

- **Heading:** Heading of your user field as displayed by FSM and the controller
- Help Description: Help text displayed by a compatible controller

Heading	My User Field	
Field Text Length	100	
Help Description	This help is displayed by the controller	

Figure 8.13 Creating a user field

NOTE: Field Text Length are fixed and cannot be modified.

- Press Edit to modify the Heading and Help description of the selected field.
- Press Rename to modify the name of the selected field.
- Press **Delete** to remove the selected field.

A CAUTION: Delete will permanently remove the selected field.

NOTE: Rename and delete will not work with FSM critical items.

- Press **Reset Template** to restore the FSM default template.
- Press Save Changes to save your templates changes.

A CAUTION: Ensure to export your Job Templates changes to your compatible controller

• Press Exit to close the screen.

A CAUTION: You need to save your templates changes before exiting the screen

8.4 Controller Tab

The Controller Setup Tab allows you to customize your compatible controller (see Figure 8.14).

From this screen you will be able to create or edit text pages which you can save in the memory of your controller and create a single file which you will be able to use to export Condition Codes and Survey Parameters set and Job Templates to your controller.

Text Page Editor
Create export file
Exit

Figure 8.14 Controller Setup

Create and Edit Text Pages

Press Text Page editor to create or edit Text pages which you will be able to export and store into a compatible controller. Please refer to the relevant controller operation manual on instructions on how to load text pages. Text page files have a .tpg extension.

NOTE: The P340USB and G4USB system controllers have a maximum of 20 text pages. The saved file must have a file name pageN.tpg, where N is a number between 0 and 19.

ext Page Editor		
Large F	onts Normal	A
В		C
 Large Font Small Font 	 Normal Mode TV Mode 	Save New Exit

Figure 8.15 Text Page Editor

P340 and Gatorcam4 systems have one font size (Large) for displaying text pages. The P350 system has 2 font sizes, Large and Small.

Large font text pages have 13 lines.

Small font text pages have 21 lines.

The P340, GatorCam4 and P350 have 2 display modes, Normal and TV.

Normal mode: Uses the full width of the screen to display text.

TV mode: Places a border around the text ensuring that all characters can be viewed on the screen when use with a TV monitor.

Setting the Text Page Screen mode

Set the Font size and display mode by clicking on the selection in the bottom left of the screen.

NOTE: Changing the font size or display mode will clear any text being currently displayed in the editor window.

The Text Page screen (Figure 8.15) has the following buttons:-

• Load: Opens an existing text page (.tpg) file with the correct font and display mode.

NOTE: If FSM cannot determine the display mode you will be prompted to select the mode.

• Save: Saves the current content of the editor as a .tpg file.

NOTE: Small font files are used on P350 systems only. If a small font files loaded on a P340 or GatorCam4 system, the screen display will be incorrect.

- New: Clears the editor content.
- Exit: Exits the editor page.

Editing Text

- Select the Font size and display mode by clicking the selections in the bottom left of the screen.
- Use the mouse to move to the position that you wish to enter text.
- Use the keyboard to enter the required text.
- The backspace key will delete the text at the current location and move to the previous character in the editor.
- The delete key will delete the text at the current location, replacing with a blank character.

8.4.1 Export to Controller

FSM can create a setup file, containing Job Templates and Condition Codes, which will allow you to customize your compatible controller.

- Press the Create Export File button
- Browse for the desired destination folder
- Press **OK** to complete the operation or Cancel to exit.

The setup file, **romdrive2.bin** is created in your selected destination folder (see Figure 8.16). Save this on your local drive as a master Export file.



Figure 8.16 Setup file creation

NOTE: these are treated as a set and can't be uploaded individually, once installed the Controller will use the set of Condition Codes and Templates you create in the "romdrive2.bin" file.

The setup file contains both your chosen Condition Codes and Jobs Template (see Figure 8.17). You can use this file to setup your compatible controller(s). To export the file to a controller, copy the master Export file to the root folder of your removable media prior to loading it on the controller. Refer to the relevant controller Operation manual for instruction on how to install the setup file.



Figure 8.17 romdrive2.bin setup file

Section 9 - Customizing the Word template

9.1 Adding your company details and logo

See Section 2.3 for details on how to display company details and logos at the beginning of Word surveys.

9.2 Editing the Word templates

FlexiSight Manager uses a standard Word document template to create Word versions of survey reports. If required, you can modify this template to change the design of the converted report to suit your company's in-house style.

There are 3 locations where templates are located.

For P350 (software V3.00 or later), P340 or GatorCam4 reports the template is located in the **My Documents\FlexiSight Manager\ Report** folder on your computer.

For P350 (software prior to V3.00), P330+ or GatorCam3+ reports the template is located in the **My Documents\FlexiSight Manager\ Report2** folder on your computer.

For FlexiSight+ reports the template is located in the **My Documents\FlexiSight Manager\ Report\Old** folder on your computer.

The templates must be edited using Microsoft Word.

NOTE: Before attempting to edit this document, it is recommended that you back up the original file.

To edit a Microsoft Word template you must first run Microsoft Word and open the template file. Template files are named: **inspectionreportXXX.dot**, where XXX is the language identifier. For example: **inspectionreportUSA.dot** for the US template.

The template file has key words that FlexiSight Manager uses to populate your report with your data. Each keyword begins with RDK_. FSM replaces each key word with the text for that key stored in your report data.

For Example: If on the controller you entered **34 High Street** for the first line of the clients' site address. The key for this is **RDK_SiteAddress1**. Each time **RDK_SiteAddress1** is found in the document it will be replaced with the text **34 High Street**.

A list of all keys available for your current template is located in the following locations:

P340/GatorCam4/P350 (software V3.00 or later) My Documents\FlexiSight Manager\ Report\TemplateCodes.txt

P330+/GatorCam3+/P350 (software prior to V3.00) My Documents\FlexiSight Manager\ Report2\TemplateCodes.txt

You may edit the file to add or remove keys from your template. You can edit any text that is not a key word.

Any RDK_ fields that have been removed by customizing the job template will be displayed in the in the output report (.doc) file. This is to assist in identifying fields that need to be removed from the current Word template (.dot) file.

NOTE: Do not delete the text $\langle SV \rangle$ and $\langle SV \rangle$ as these are special keys used by the system used to create a report with multiple surveys. Between the $\langle SV \rangle$ and $\langle SV \rangle$ keys are the information that is generated for each report.

You can also paste photographs into the document provided that the paste location is not between <SV> and </SV> keys

On completion of your edit, save your new template with the same name.

NOTE: Please make a backup copy of the modified file in another area of your computer as this file will be replaced if you Restore Default Program settings or you re-install the program.

Section 10 - Removing FlexiSight Manager

Windows XP

- Click on the Start Icon (Bottom left of the screen)
- Select Control Panel
- Add or Remove Programs
- Locate FSM in the list and click on it
- Click on Remove.

Windows Vista and Windows 7

- Click on the Start Icon (Bottom left of the screen)
- Select Control Panel
- In the Programs section select Uninstall a Program
- Locate FSM in the list and click on it
- Click on uninstall.

Windows 8

- Swipe in from the right edge of the screen, and then tap Search. (If you're using a mouse, point to the upper-right corner of the screen, move the mouse pointer down, and then click 'Search'.)
- Enter control panel in the search box, and then tap or click Control Panel.
- Under View by:, select Large Icons, and then tap or click Programs and features.
- Tap or click the program, and then tap or click Uninstall.
- Follow the instructions on the screen.

To see the full range of products and services provided by Radiodetection visit: www.radiodetection.com

Copyright © 2016 Radiodetection Ltd. All rights reserved. Radiodetection is a subsidiary of SPX Corporation. Radiodetection, Pearpoint, GatorCam, flexiprobe and

flexitrax are trademarks of Radiodetection Ltd. Due to a policy of continued development, we reserve the right to alter or amend any published specification without notice. This document may not be copied, reproduced, transmitted, modified or used, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Radiodetection Ltd.





RADIODETECTION[®]

PEARPOINT[®]

Global locations

Radiodetection (USA)

28 Tower Road, Raymond, Maine 04071, USA Tel: +1 (207) 655 8525 Toll Free: +1 (877) 247 3797 rd.sales.us@spx.com www.radiodetection.com

Pearpoint (USA)

39-740 Garand Lane, Unit B, Palm Desert, CA 92211, USA Tel: +1 800 688 8094 Tel: +1 760 343 7350 pearpoint.sales.us@spx.com www.radiodetection.com

Radiodetection (Canada)

344 Edgeley Boulevard, Unit 34, Concord, Ontario L4K 4B7, Canada Tel: +1 (905) 660 9995 Toll Free: +1 (800) 665 7953 rd.sales.ca@spx.com www.radiodetection.com

Radiodetection Ltd. (UK)

Western Drive, Bristol, BS14 0AF, UK Tel: +44 (0) 117 976 7776 rd.sales.uk@spx.com www.radiodetection.com

Radiodetection (France)

13 Grande Rue, 76220, Neuf Marché, France Tel: +33 (0) 2 32 89 93 60 rd.sales.fr@spx.com http://fr.radiodetection.com

Radiodetection (Benelux)

Industriestraat 11, 7041 GD 's-Heerenberg, Netherlands Tel: +31 (0) 314 66 47 00 rd.sales.nl@spx.com http://nl.radiodetection.com

Radiodetection (Germany)

Groendahlscher Weg 118, 46446 Emmerich am Rhein, Germany Tel: +49 (0) 28 51 92 37 20 rd.sales.de@spx.com http://de.radiodetection.com

Radiodetection (Asia-Pacific)

Room 708, CC Wu Building, 302-308 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong SAR, China Tel: +852 2110 8160 rd.sales.asiapacific@spx.com www.radiodetection.com

Radiodetection (China)

Ming Hao Building D304, No. 13 Fuqian Avenue, Tianzhu Town, Shunyi District, Beijing 101312, China Tel: +86 (0) 10 8416-3372 rd.service.cn@spx.com http://cn.radiodetection.com

Radiodetection (Australia)

Unit H1, 101 Rookwood Road, Yagoona NSW 2199, Australia Tel: +61 (0) 2 9707 3222 rd.sales.au@spx.com www.radiodetection.com

Copyright © 2016 Radiodetection Ltd. All rights reserved. Radiodetection is a subsidiary of SPX Corporation. Radiodetection, Pearpoint, GatorCam, flexiprobe and flexitrax are trademarks of Radiodetection Ltd. Due to a policy of continued development, we reserve the right to alter or amend any published specification without notice. This document may not be copied, reproduced, transmitted, modified or used, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Radiodetection Ltd.

